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          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Good morning. I

          3  am Bill Perkins, Chair of the City Council's

          4  Committee on Governmental Operations.  Today will we

          5  be conducting a hearing on a preconsidered

          6  resolution which deals with affirming and upholding

          7  civil rights and civil liberties.

          8                 I should also point out that this is

          9  Black History Month and this evening there will be

         10  an outstanding forum at the Schomburg Center for

         11  Research in Black Culture sponsored by the New York

         12  Civil Liberties Union, my office, the Schomburg

         13  Center, in which we will be, once again, in a forum

         14  format, looking at civil rights, civil liberties,

         15  and the PATRIOT Act, particularly as it relates to

         16  black history.

         17                 We will have an outstanding cast of

         18  characters, if you will, including Professor Manning

         19  Marabow (phonetic), Congressman Charles Rangel, Ron

         20  Daniels of the American Civil Liberties Union -- no,

         21  I'm sorry, the Center for Constitutional Rights, and

         22  a young lady over there, Donna Lieberman, from the

         23  New York Civil Liberties Union, as well as quite a

         24  few others that will be a part of the audience and

         25  participating in what has become one of the most
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          2  important areas of concern in our City, and in our

          3  nation, and we are talking again about the PATRIOT

          4  Act.

          5                 Although this is the first hearing on

          6  this resolution for this new legislative session,

          7  this is the third hearing for this resolution before

          8  this Committee.

          9                 This resolution was formerly

         10  Resolution 909-A in 2003 of the last session.  This

         11  Committee heard testimony on this resolution last

         12  session and voted it out of Committee by an

         13  affirmative vote of 7 to 2.

         14                 This resolution has wide support in

         15  this Council with 32 sponsors, including the

         16  Speaker, Gifford Miller, and we anticipate, should

         17  it vote out of Committee today, that it will vote

         18  out of the full Council on February the 4th, this

         19  Wednesday.

         20                 This resolution deals with an intense

         21  debate surrounding the balance between national

         22  security interests, and protecting and upholding

         23  civil rights and civil liberties.

         24                 As in the past, we intend to review

         25  both sides of this intense debate and we have
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          2  invited representatives both supportive and critical

          3  of this resolution to come and testify.

          4                 Since we last heard testimony in this

          5  reso., there have been many developments that appear

          6  to affirm the sentiment fueling passage of this

          7  resolution.

          8                 On December 18th, in Padilla versus

          9  Bush, the 2nd Circuit ruled in favor of Jose

         10  Padilla, an American citizen who has been held

         11  incommunicado as a "enemy combatant" since 2002,

         12  stating that the President does not have authority,

         13  unilaterally to detain an American citizen in a

         14  military facility without access to courts and an

         15  attorney.

         16                 In another decision issued January

         17  23rd, Humanitarian Law Project versus Ashcroft, a

         18  federal judge ruled that a ban in the PATRIOT Act on

         19  providing "expert advice and assistance" to

         20  terrorist groups violation of first and fifth

         21  amendments because it is so vague that it "could be

         22  construed to include unequivocally pure speech and

         23  advocacy protected by the first amendment".

         24                 These points are exactly what this

         25  resolution has been stating.  In the fifth resolve,

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  relevant to Padilla, the Council of the City of New

          3  York opposes the secret detention of persons and the

          4  detention of persons without charges or access to a

          5  lawyer, and the third resolve related to

          6  Humanitarian Law versus Ashcroft, the Council of the

          7  City of New York affirms its commitment to uphold

          8  civil rights and civil liberties, and therefore

          9  expresses its opposition to the investigation of

         10  individuals or groups, of individuals, based on

         11  their participation and activities protected by the

         12  First Amendment, such as political advocacy.

         13                 Finally, in the eighth resolve, the

         14  Council of the City of New York calls upon our

         15  United States representatives and senators to

         16  monitor the implementation of the U.S.A. PATRIOT

         17  Act, and to actively work for the repeal of those

         18  sections of the U.S.A. PATRIOT Act that unduly

         19  infringe upon fundamental rights and liberties as

         20  recognized in the U.S. Constitution.

         21                 I am happy to report that bipartisan

         22  legislation, the Security and Freedom Ensured Act,

         23  the Safe Act, has been introduced in the Senate to

         24  curb the Constitutional Excesses of the PATRIOT Act.

         25  One of the sponsors noting that "it is possible to
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          2  combat terrorism and preserve our individual

          3  freedoms at the same time".  Of course, this very

          4  sentiment has resonated through this resolution and

          5  the hearings we have held on this resolution.

          6                 There is a growing national consensus

          7  that the PATRIOT Act is too far reaching and that it

          8  jeopardizes civil rights and civil liberties.

          9  Democrats and Republicans, liberals and

         10  conservatives are forming coalitions against this

         11  Act because of perceived violations of our

         12  Constitution, and because of resolutions like this

         13  one, and the advocacy behind such resolutions.

         14                 The Pro-PATRIOT Act population is a

         15  shrinking minority and it is becoming more apparent

         16  that being supportive of the Act, right or wrong, is

         17  not necessarily an act of patriotism, but perhaps

         18  one of idolatry, the last thing our democracy needs

         19  now.

         20                 The fight is not over.  President

         21  Bush has already come forward and threatened to veto

         22  and legislation that limits the PATRIOT Act.  He has

         23  also called for an extension of the PATRIOT Act's

         24  Sunset Provisions in the State of the Union speech.

         25  This resolution is more timely than ever and the
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          2  Committee looks forward to a fruitful discussion on

          3  this issue. This resolution does not stand for civil

          4  liberties at the expense of national security, it

          5  stands for the rule of law, it stands for civil

          6  liberties, it stands for things that empower us as a

          7  people to stand strong in the face of adversity and

          8  pull through resilient and renewed.

          9                 Before we begin the hearing, I would

         10  like to introduce the other members of the

         11  Committee.

         12                 Starting on my far left, the Chair of

         13  our Revenue Forecasting Committee, Michael Nelson,

         14  Council member Michael Nelson.  Next to him, the

         15  Chair of our Public Safety, Council Member Peter

         16  Vallone, Jr.  On my far right, Councilwoman

         17  Christine Quinn, and sitting next to her, on my far

         18  right, but nevertheless, on your left, as always,

         19  the Chairwoman of our Health Committee, Christine

         20  Quinn.  I apologize for the positioning that you

         21  find yourself in.  But be that as it may, we are

         22  happy also as sitting with you is our Chairwoman of

         23  Housing and Buildings, Councilwoman Madeline

         24  Provenzano.

         25                 I want to extend my appreciation to
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          2  Matthew Tollin the Counsel to the Committee,

          3  Jonathan Ettricks our Policy Analyst, and our press

          4  secretary, Lupe Todd for their support on this very,

          5  very important hearing.

          6                 I would also like to acknowledge that

          7  Council Member Phil Reed is with us, though he had

          8  to step out for a moment but is with us this

          9  afternoon, and we anticipate that all of the members

         10  of the Committee will be here.  We have been

         11  informed that some of them are on their way.  So

         12  with that in mind, we are going to move forward.

         13                 Before we begin hearing from our

         14  witnesses, we would like to have some brief remarks

         15  from Council Member Peter Vallone.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chair.  Let me commend you for having a second

         18  hearing on this, which I think it needs more than

         19  one, and also for actually revising your resolution

         20  to be factually accurate.

         21                 Last time I spent most of the hearing

         22  explaining to people that all of the supposed

         23  violations they spoke of had nothing to do with the

         24  PATRIOT Act, such as these so-called illegal

         25  detentions, and at least your resolution now
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          2  recognizes that fact, and talks about things other

          3  than the PATRIOT Act because there are no detentions

          4  being done under the PATRIOT Act.

          5                 I am done with the commending now,

          6  so, let my complain that --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Well, with that

          8  in mind, we will go right straight to our hearing.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  My brief

         10  time is up.

         11                 Let me complain that the last hearing

         12  had nothing but anti-PATRIOT Act witnesses, and I

         13  have looked at the panel for this hearing, and once

         14  again we have nothing but anti-PATRIOT Act

         15  witnesses, that is not what a democracy is about.

         16                 I am aware that you said that you

         17  invited some.  I am not sure who you invited, I

         18  would actually like to know.  They are not here, and

         19  you only have, it looks like five different groups

         20  of people who are all opposed to the PATRIOT Act,

         21  which I do not believe is the proper way to have a

         22  hearing.  And I will briefly say that once again,

         23  that I believe the PATRIOT Act is a large part of

         24  the reason that we have not been attacked in the

         25  last two years, and as Chair of the Public Safety
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          2  Committee in the City Council, in a City that gave

          3  of 3,000 lives in defense of democracy, I fully

          4  support it.

          5                 You know, It was Lenon in the fight

          6  against communism, the lead of the communists, who

          7  coined the phrase "useful idiots" to describe those

          8  in America who helped the communist cause by blindly

          9  fighting against all efforts to combat communism.

         10  Today I fear that the City Council is playing that

         11  role.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         13  much for your compliments, and obviously we

         14  appreciate your loyalty to the country, and we also,

         15  nevertheless, appreciate your participation in the

         16  Committee.

         17                 And actually let me point out that

         18  the prior resolution spoke to related federal

         19  actions that were in violation of the civil rights

         20  and civil liberties, not simply the PATRIOT Act, so

         21  that is number one.

         22                 Number two, let me point out again

         23  that we have reached out to others who have

         24  different positions with respect to the PATRIOT Act,

         25  and none have decided to take advantage of the
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          2  opportunity, and so we are trying to be democratic

          3  and I think we have been very democratic, and have

          4  allowed all opinions to be expressed as they have

          5  come forward.

          6                 With that in mind, we want to start

          7  with our first panel, which is basically a panel

          8  that will give us an overview of civil liberties

          9  issues and a need for this resolution.

         10                 In that regard, we bring forward Udi

         11  Ofer, the Campaign Director for the New York Civil

         12  Liberties Union, and Donna Liebermann who is the

         13  dynamic, Executive Director of the New York Civil

         14  Liberties Union, who will be starring this evening

         15  at the Schomburg Center for Research in Black

         16  Culture, as we continue this discussion this

         17  evening. Donna Liebermann of the New York Civil

         18  Liberties Union.  Good morning to both of you.

         19  Please prepare to be sworn in.

         20                 COUNSEL TOLLIN:  Please raise you

         21  right hands.  Do you solemnly swear and affirm that

         22  the testimony you are about to give is the truth,

         23  the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         24                 MR. OFER:  Yes.

         25                 MS. LIEBERMAN:  Yes.
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          2                 COUNSEL TOLLIN:  Thank you.  Could

          3  you before testifying give your name?

          4                 MS. LIEBERMANN:  Donna Liebermann,

          5  also known as, "that young lady over there,"

          6  Director of the New York Civil Liberties Union.

          7                 MR. OFER:  Udi Ofer, Project

          8  Director, the New York Civil Liberties Union, Bill

          9  of Rights Defense Campaign.

         10                 MS. LIEBERMANN:  I just want to speak

         11  briefly.  I did not know that I would have time to

         12  be here this morning and I am glad that I do.

         13                 I just want to thank Bill Perkins,

         14  and this Committee, for the leadership that it has

         15  shown on this issue, and take a minute to point out

         16  that the extensive, and it has felt sometimes,

         17  exhaustive deliberations of this Committee stand in

         18  stark contrast to the way the State and federal

         19  government have addressed these issues.

         20                 You probably know, but I would like

         21  to point out that when the state legislature

         22  convened and passed, the state anti-terrorism act,

         23  which was billed as the toughest anti-terrorism law

         24  in the nation at the time and included serious

         25  changes in our criminal law, it gave mere hours to
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          2  the debate, and State Senator Tom Duane, for

          3  example, whose district encompasses Ground Zero, was

          4  not even given a change to talk, and when the United

          5  State Congress deliberated on the final version of

          6  the U.S.A. PATRIOT Act, it, too, had less time than

          7  this body is giving to deliberate over the changes

          8  in the law that were being proposed.  So, I commend

          9  you for that.  And, I guess on that I share the

         10  sentiments of Council Member Vallone, but that is

         11  where we part company, that is where our agreements

         12  end.

         13                 I do have to take issue with him.

         14  You know, one does not have to comment on his

         15  quotation from Lenon, but I think that he is in the

         16  company of John Ashcroft who has told us time and

         17  time again that those of us who dare to criticize

         18  and question our government, in these very, very

         19  difficult times, on issues of national security

         20  policy and freedom, are giving aid and comfort to

         21  the enemy.  We are not.  We are trying to strengthen

         22  our democracy by strengthening and preserving our

         23  freedoms, and for that I commend this Committee, and

         24  its Chair.

         25                 The issues, unfortunately, have not

                                                            15

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  gone away, and the array of government policies that

          3  seeks to sacrifice our liberty, needlessly, in the

          4  name of national security, by doing a end-run around

          5  the courts, by undermining the way we as a democracy

          6  have done democracies business for hundreds of

          7  years, that is the challenge to our freedom that is

          8  unnecessary and will not further our freedom or our

          9  national security.

         10                 Of course, we all want to be safe but

         11  we all want to be free, and unless the government

         12  can demonstrate to us that it is necessary in any

         13  particular situation to engage in the kind of

         14  activities that the PATRIOT Act, that the tensions

         15  of the immigrant community, of Jose Padilla and

         16  others, without access to counsel, without even a

         17  prayer of a trial, are necessary, then we have to

         18  just stand up and say no.

         19                 So, to present the rest of the

         20  testimony on behalf of the New York Civil Liberties

         21  Union now is Udi Ofer.

         22                 MR. OFER:  Thank you.  My name is Udi

         23  Ofer, I am the Project Director at the NYCLU of the

         24  Bill of Rights Defense Campaign.

         25                 It goes without saying that for more
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          2  than 50 years that NYCLU has been New York State's

          3  leading advocate on behalf of New Yorkers civil

          4  rights and civil liberties.

          5                 I also want to thank you today for

          6  holding a hearing on the Bill of Rights resolution,

          7  formerly known as Resolution 909- A.

          8                 The Bill of Rights resolution has

          9  always called upon government officials to uphold

         10  rights and freedoms when prosecuting the war on

         11  terrorism.  Whether it is upholding rights that were

         12  violated by the U.S.A. PATRIOT Act, by the Special

         13  Registration program, by the round-ups after 9/11,

         14  it has always taken a firm stand against all

         15  violations.

         16                 I want to thank Council member Bill

         17  Perkins for his outstanding leadership on this

         18  issue.

         19                 I also want to thank the seven

         20  Committee members who voted for the resolution on

         21  December 15th.  Thank you, Council Member Comrie,

         22  Moskowitz, Nelson, Perkins, Provenzano, Quinn and

         23  Reed.

         24                 I want to thank the resolutions 33

         25  co-sponsors, and I want to thank Speaker Gifford
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          2  Miller, who was co-sponsor of the resolution, has

          3  committed himself to ensuring its overwhelming

          4  passage by the City Council.

          5                 And I also want to extend an

          6  invitation to Council Members Addabbo and Vallone to

          7  meet with us, so that we could discuss any concerns

          8  you might have about the resolution.  It is vital

          9  that we all understand what is at stake, and that we

         10  work together.

         11                 The NYCLU's written testimony is

         12  long.  You all have it.  But I will keep my verbal

         13  testimony short.

         14                 On October 20th, this Committee held

         15  extensive hearings on the status of civil rights and

         16  freedoms in the United States.  I do not believe

         17  that there is a need to repeat that entire analysis

         18  today, but should you need more information, you

         19  have it in our written testimony, and we will be

         20  more than happy to discuss any issues that are

         21  contained in there.

         22                 But for the next several minutes, I

         23  want to update the Committee on what has been

         24  happening since we last met on October 20th, because

         25  there have been significant updates on the political
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          2  response, and the legal response to civil rights and

          3  civil liberties violations since 9/11. And I think

          4  it is actually working out very appropriately that

          5  we meet again today because there is a lot more

          6  foundation for what we have to say.

          7                 Since we last met, three, three

          8  separate Federal Courts have ruled against

          9  significant parts of the Bush Administration's

         10  anti-terrorism policies, citing vast violations of

         11  constitutional rights.

         12                 In addition, the Justice Department's

         13  own Inspector General, so this is the Justice

         14  Department official, found hundreds of videotapes

         15  since we last met, the federal officials claimed

         16  were destroyed, detailing physical and verbal abuse

         17  by prison officials in Brooklyn, here in New York

         18  City, against innocent immigrants rounded up since

         19  9/11.

         20                 We have pictures of detainees being

         21  slammed up against the wall, of prison officials

         22  putting up T-shirts with an American flag on it

         23  saying, stating, "these colors don't run", and

         24  detainees being slammed up against that T-shirt, and

         25  remember, all of the 9/11 detainees were eventually
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          2  cleared of terrorism charges.

          3                 In dozens more American cities, since

          4  last we met have passed Bill of Rights resolutions,

          5  including Atlanta, Georgia, and Los Angles,

          6  California.  L.A. passed its resolution the day

          7  after the State of the Union Address, when President

          8  Bush asked that the Sunset Provisions of the PATRIOT

          9  Act be repealed.

         10                 I will go quickly into more detail on

         11  the three court decisions because they are

         12  significant.

         13                 On December 18, 2003 the Second

         14  Circuit Court of Appeals, here in New York City,

         15  ruled against President Bush's policy of detaining

         16  U. S. Citizens, not immigrants, but citizens,

         17  indefinitely without charges or access to counsel.

         18  The Appeals Court ruled that Jose Padilla, a U. S.

         19  Citizen, and Brooklyn native, born in Brooklyn,

         20  could not be detained indefinitely based on the whim

         21  of the President and his unilateral declaration that

         22  a U. S. Citizen, a New Yorker, is an "enemy

         23  combatant".  This is the Second Circuit Court of

         24  Appeals.

         25                 On that same day, on December 18th,
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          2  another federal court of appeals in California ruled

          3  that the Administrations policy of imprisoning more

          4  than 600 individuals in Guantanamo Bay without

          5  access to any legal recourse, was not only

          6  unconstitutional but a violation of long-standing

          7  principals of international law. And then, on

          8  January 23, another federal judge ruled that a part

          9  of the U.S.A. PATRIOT Act violated the first and

         10  fifth amendments to the United States Constitution.

         11  Judge Collins ruled that the section providing

         12  banning expert advise in assistance was so vague

         13  that it violated first amendment principals, and

         14  that it, basically, codified quilt by association.

         15  It made no distinction between human rights or

         16  terrorist advise.

         17                 The tide is shifting since last we

         18  met, and it is no longer a radical statement to say

         19  that individual freedoms have been needlessly

         20  sacrificed in the name of national security.  This

         21  is the status quo.  For those who still do not know,

         22  these are the constitutional violations we witnessed

         23  since 9/11.  Hundreds, if not, thousands of innocent

         24  immigrants were rounded up in the hours, days, and

         25  weeks following 9/11, held for weeks without
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          2  charges, denied access to counsel, put in a

          3  communications blackout, placed in solitary

          4  confinement, 23 hour lock- down, subjected to a

          5  pattern of physical and verbal abuse, and all, after

          6  spending months in jail, were cleared of terrorism

          7  charges.  This is documented here, these are not the

          8  words of an ACLU report.  These are the words of the

          9  Inspector General of the Justice Department, and it

         10  is in here, if anyone wants a copy.

         11                 Moreover, over 82 thousand Arab,

         12  Muslim, and South Asian men were made to register

         13  with the United States government. Over 13 thousand

         14  were placed in deportation proceedings, and none,

         15  zero, were ever charged with terrorism.  Thousands

         16  of innocent families were ripped apart.  In the

         17  Midwood Section of Brooklyn alone, here in New York

         18  City, the problems are so bad, due to these

         19  policies, that approximately 15,000 residents have

         20  left or been deported since 9/11.  This is one

         21  community in Brooklyn.  Stores report business being

         22  down by up to 40 percent.  And, Council member

         23  Vallone was correct, and he said, all of these

         24  violations that I just cited were not under the

         25  U.S.A. PATRIOT Act, and we have always been very
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          2  responsible about that, in all of our public

          3  materials, and our educational materials, we make

          4  distinctions. But, under the U.S.A. PATRIOT Act,

          5  passed just 45 days following 9/11, the Executive

          6  Branch of government was giving unprecedented, vast

          7  new authority to do an "end- run" around the courts

          8  and the United States constitution.

          9                 The government can now seize

         10  personal, intimate records on U.S. Citizens, U.S.

         11  Citizens, without having to prove any criminal

         12  suspicion.  The subject of the search will never

         13  know it ever happened.  There has been some

         14  confusion in the Committee about Section 215, yes

         15  the government has always had the ability to obtain

         16  your library records, you medical records, and it

         17  should have that ability.  No one is arguing that it

         18  shouldn't, but it has always had to prove criminal

         19  suspicion, or probable cause in order to obtain that

         20  information.  The PATRIOT Act got rid of that

         21  provision.  The government no longer has top prove

         22  criminal suspicion in order to obtain your records.

         23  All it has to state is that it is somehow sought for

         24  an ongoing investigation into terrorism.  It does

         25  not have to state there is any criminal suspicion,
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          2  and all of this is done through the secret, foreign

          3  intelligence corps, where there is one party to all

          4  proceedings, the government, and all the hearing are

          5  closed off to the public. And the subject of the

          6  search will never know that this ever happened.  So,

          7  for example, the government can go to the New York

          8  Public Library and say, "give my the records of

          9  every person who ever borrowed the book titled,

         10  Islamic Fundamentalism".  Why? Because it is sought

         11  for an ongoing investigation, because maybe, someone

         12  who read this book might want to engage in

         13  terrorism, and that is perfectly legal under the

         14  U.S.A. PATRIOT Act, but it is not legal under the

         15  United States Constitution.  Under Section 802 of

         16  the PATRIOT Act, individuals engaged in non- violent

         17  civil disobedience may now be labeled as domestic

         18  terrorists, and changes to F.B.I., and New York

         19  Police Departments spying guidelines, have brought

         20  us back to the bad old days, when the government

         21  spied on lawful political figures, such as Martin

         22  Luther King, Jr., and Eleanor Roosevelt.

         23                 Again, these are the words of James

         24  Sensenbrenner, conservative Republican from the

         25  House of Representatives, who Chairs the Judiciary
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          2  Committee.

          3                 The list goes one, and I could speak

          4  for hours but I won't.  This is the bottom line,

          5  civil liberties and national security do not

          6  conflict.  9/11 did not happen because we had too

          7  many freedoms.  Violating our freedoms will not make

          8  us safer, it did not work with the round-ups of

          9  Italians and Russians during World War I, it did not

         10  work with the round-ups of Japanese Americans during

         11  World War II, and it is not going to work today.

         12  Please pass the Bill of Rights Resolution, and make

         13  a statement that you choose liberty over fear.

         14  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 We are going to have to, after this

         18  panel, take a vote because some members have

         19  indicated a need to attend some additional matters

         20  of importance.  So, I just want to extend my

         21  apologies, so-to-speak, to those panelists that may

         22  be coming, not to feel as if your testimony is

         23  slighted or in any way not appreciated.  It is just

         24  that some members have indicated that they have

         25  outstanding commitments that they have to meet.
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          2                 Any questions?  The first question

          3  will come from Council Member Vallone; however, I

          4  want to acknowledge that Council Member Leroy Comrie

          5  is here with us.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Council

          7  member, I would like to vote, aye, because I have an

          8  11:30 meeting back in Queens.  And no disrespect to

          9  the Committees or anyone else.  I would hope that

         10  this resolution is presented at the floor of

         11  Congress, and I would remind everyone to vote

         12  Democratic in November.  I vote aye.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Council Member

         14  Comrie, can you hold on one second until the vote

         15  taker gets here?  Thank you.

         16                 Council Member Vallone.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chair.  Mr. Ofer, thank you for your testimony,

         19  and your offer to meet.  I have met with many groups

         20  such as yours on this issue, and my door is always

         21  open, such as there is a group called, Historians

         22  for Peace and Justice, people like that who I think

         23  are associated with you guys, who I have met with on

         24  a few occasions, and there is, obviously, some

         25  things we can agree on, like, I would even agree
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          2  with you guys on the detention without access to a

          3  lawyer, things like that.  But this resolution goes

          4  much farther than that, and so I have a few specific

          5  questions.

          6                 First of all, I mean you ended with a

          7  quote from a conservative that, I missed his name,

          8  but I can give you some interesting Democrats.  Joe

          9  Bieden (phonetic), the F.B.I. could get a wiretap to

         10  investigate the Mafia, but they could not get one to

         11  investigate terrorists.  To put it bluntly, that was

         12  crazy.  What is good for the mob, should be good for

         13  terrorists.

         14                 John Edwards, Presidential candidate,

         15  about the PATRIOT Act, "We simply cannot prevail in

         16  the battle against terrorism, if the right hand of

         17  our government has no idea what the left hand is

         18  doing".  So, it works both ways.  And I am not going

         19  to also go into too many specifics about what you

         20  said either, because we have been through this, but,

         21  you mentioned library records.  Again, I am a former

         22  Prosecutor, you show a fundamental misunderstanding

         23  of prosecution of terrorists by what you said.  You

         24  said that, and let's go through this, I am sure that

         25  -- you have Donna next to you and she knows what I
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          2  am talking about.  You said that they have

          3  eliminated the need for a criminal suspicion in

          4  order to get your library record, which is

          5  absolutely right.  But you forget that we are

          6  fighting terrorists, when you are investigating

          7  terrorists, no criminal act need ever have been

          8  done.  When people are taking flight school, flight

          9  training and things like that, they are not

         10  committing a criminal act, so you cannot point to a

         11  criminal act, or a suspicion of criminal activity to

         12  get a warrant for the records.  So that is way, and

         13  it's a fundamental difference, it's a very clear and

         14  easy difference for people who prosecute these

         15  things to understand.  You cannot point to a

         16  criminal, you are not investigating a crime, you are

         17  preventing a possible crime, that may not, and that

         18  possible crime may have no crime that has been

         19  committed yet, yes sometimes they have been

         20  committed, but sometimes they haven't, and that is

         21  why that element was removed.

         22                 And let me, you know, since you

         23  wanted to speak about that, before I move on, let me

         24  ask you respond to that.  That is why criminal

         25  suspicion --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Council member,

          3  I am not going to curb your freedom, but I just

          4  wanted to see if we can, sort of, make your

          5  questions a little bit more concise, if you don't

          6  mind?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  It really

          8  wasn't a question, it was just a disagreement.  But,

          9  if you want, I wanted to give you an opportunity to

         10  comment on what I said though.

         11                 MR. OFER:  The Fourth Amendment to

         12  the United States Constitution requires criminal

         13  suspicion.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Before you

         15  answer, I really have to interrupt because Council

         16  member Comrie must leave, and I do not want them to

         17  change his vote at this point in time.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Comrie.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Aye.  Thank

         20  you, Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you, Mr.

         22  Comrie.

         23                 Are there any other members at this

         24  point who feel the need to vote?

         25                 Council Member Reed.  We are going to
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          2  take the vote for everybody, since we are at it, and

          3  then vote, if there is no objection.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council member Reed.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  I Vote aye.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Can we have the

          7  vote for the rest of the members, please?

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Perkins.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Provenzano.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  May I be

         12  excused to explain my vote?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  By all means.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  I know it

         15  is, you know how I voted last time, and I know it is

         16  a little strange for some people to see me on this

         17  side of an issue.

         18                 I have done a lot of research,

         19  myself, on the PATRIOT Act.  This is some of it,

         20  thank God for the internet.  So, I know the issues

         21  pro and con, and that is why I made up my mind.

         22                 I don't know, I would just like to

         23  comment, or I would like to mention Congressmen

         24  Serrano, if you do not mind?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Please.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  I had a

          3  conversation with Congressman Serrano Friday night,

          4  and informed him that we were having a hearing on

          5  this reso today, which he did not know. He was

          6  thrilled, and he has a briefing paper that he did

          7  that he would like to get to the Committee, would

          8  like to get to all the Council members.  So, I

          9  informed the Chair, and they are going to work on

         10  getting that so that we could have it read, and be

         11  part of the record.

         12                 Regarding the PATRIOT Act, I would

         13  just like to talk about one area for a minute.  I

         14  know you are all on a time schedule, but I think it

         15  is important.

         16                 Banks.  I had a personal experience,

         17  which I will not go into, but there are many, many

         18  new regulations governing our banks that are a

         19  result of the PATRIOT Act.

         20                 Has anyone tried to open an account

         21  lately?  It is not as easy as it used to be.  This

         22  frightens our seniors.  They will all be getting

         23  certified letters asking for information that was

         24  not previously required.  If you want to withdraw,

         25  what they call a large amount of money, if it is
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          2  over $5,000, it is over $7,000, depending on the

          3  bank, you have to fill out forms, you have to

          4  provide I.D., and when you protest, they tell you,

          5  don't you want us to protect your money?  Yeah,

          6  sure, but not necessarily from me, it is my money.

          7  It is really insane.

          8                 The Department of Justice claims that

          9  we need this Act to, and I quote, "protect innocent

         10  Americans from the deadly plans of terrorists,

         11  dedicated to destroying America and our way of

         12  life."

         13                 With the PATRIOT Act, as it stands,

         14  and possibly the Domestic Security Enhancement Act,

         15  we won't need terrorists to destroy our way of life,

         16  our government is doing it for us, and when did

         17  being an American mean giving up our freedoms?

         18                 And I guess a funnier side is that I

         19  sit here and vote, I am kind of thinking to myself

         20  that there is probably somebody out there, call me

         21  paranoid, that put all our yes votes, we are all

         22  going on a big list now, so.  Most of my colleagues

         23  know my feelings about resolutions, but I have

         24  requested that my name be added to 909-A, and I vote

         25  yes.  Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Nelson.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  May I be

          4  excused to explain my vote?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  By all means.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you.  I

          7  could not help but think that Lenon also said that,

          8  the capitalists will sell us the rope, when we, we

          9  use to hang them with, and I hope that is not

         10  analogous with our freedoms.  Nobody knows where I

         11  am going with this right now, so that is the mystery

         12  of it all, which is great.

         13                 Quite frankly, nobody knows what the

         14  heck would be better for our country, because if we

         15  are blown to smithereens because we were not more

         16  prudent, we don't have to worry about freedom and

         17  those who do not believe in freedom whatsoever,

         18  could be ruling the country.

         19                 However, we do not want our freedoms

         20  and our liberties impugned upon and hurt and

         21  violated because then we will not be the same

         22  country. I like some of the provisions but there is

         23  a few I do not like, especially the no access to

         24  counsel, that particularly sticks in my craw.  Maybe

         25  Nostradamas would know, or a Voltaire, or somebody,
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          2  what would be best for this country, which way to

          3  go, but I do not think we really, totally do.  And

          4  again, Council Member Vallone mentioned part of it,

          5  I mean we go after the Mafia, we go into libraries,

          6  and if it is a threat to our national security or

          7  safety of individuals, we do do that, but wrapping

          8  it up with some concern for our national security, I

          9  vote yes to put this reso out onto the floor for a

         10  vote of the full Council as a whole.  I vote aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Quinn.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I want to

         13  apologize for having to leave.  I had scheduled a

         14  meeting across the street not thinking, thinking we

         15  would not have hearings until after the 4th, so I

         16  have to apologize for that, but I am very glad we

         17  are having this hearing here today, and I spoke at

         18  the first hearing so I will just vote aye and say

         19  that I am very glad that, hopefully, after the full

         20  Council votes, New York City will be on record

         21  wanting the federal government to have the type of

         22  review that we have, minimally the type of review

         23  that we have had in this body of the PATRIOT Act,

         24  and to hear from people who have been impacted,

         25  firsthand, by the effects of the PATRIOT Act, and I
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          2  hope through that they will see that this, which may

          3  have been well intentioned, is not really moving us

          4  any closer towards being safer or free from

          5  terrorism but in fact moving us further away from

          6  the freedoms that we seek so aggressively to protect

          7  and maintain in this country.

          8                 Thank you, and I vote aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Vallone.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  May I

         11  explain my vote briefly?  I guess that is a yes?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  By all means,

         13  Sir.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you.

         15  Thank you.  I agree, the PATRIOT Act may have taken

         16  law in this country to a place it's never been, that

         17  is because this country after 9/11 is facing a

         18  threat it has never faced.  Public safety needs to

         19  be this country's number one priority, not the

         20  rights of suspected terrorists, and therefore, I am

         21  going to vote no on this.  I support the PATRIOT

         22  Act, and I look forward to continue debating it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of six in
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          2  the affirmative, one in the negative, and no

          3  abstentions, the item is adopted, Council members,

          4  please sign the Committee Report.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  We are going to

          6  leave the vote open, there are several members who

          7  have indicated that they would be here a little

          8  late, and so, we would like to give them the

          9  opportunity to express their vote and their position

         10  with regard to this Act.

         11                 Let me say, no matter what side of

         12  the issue you are on, nothing could have been more

         13  patriotic than for us to do what we are doing now,

         14  and I think, we do our Council, I think we do our

         15  City, I think we do our Nation well when we

         16  deliberate on these very, very important matters,

         17  that though apparently national in scope, are very

         18  local in effect, and especially in light of the fact

         19  that New York was the target of 9/11 and many of us,

         20  including myself, have lost loved ones in that

         21  attack, and we, obviously, do not want any

         22  undemocratic actions to be taken in our name.

         23                 With that in mind, we are going to

         24  now continue our questioning, and/or, the next

         25  panel.  Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Mr. Ofer, I

          3  believe you were discussing, we were discussing the

          4  Fourth Amendment, and you got interrupted.

          5                 MR. OFER:  The Fourth Amendment to

          6  the United States Constitution is the law that

          7  requires criminal suspicion in order for the

          8  government to obtain your records.  I understand the

          9  need for height in security, and we call for height

         10  in security post-9/11, but it is the United States

         11  Constitution that is the final say in our system of

         12  government, and the United States Constitution has a

         13  criminal suspicion requirement.

         14                 This is not the first time that the

         15  country is dealing with these issues.

         16                 In 1972, the United States Supreme

         17  Court dealt with a similar issue in a case called

         18  Keith (phonetic), where the government, again,

         19  wanted to make national security exceptions to the

         20  Constitution's Fourth Amendment requirements, and

         21  this was the opinion of the majority in that case:

         22                 "There is no doubt pragmatic force to

         23  the government's position concerning the risks of

         24  the warrant procedure in national security cases,

         25  nonetheless, history abundantly documents the
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          2  tendency of government, how ever benevolent and

          3  benign in its motives to view with suspicion those

          4  whose most fervently dispute its policies.  Fourth

          5  Amendment protections become the more necessary when

          6  the targets of official surveillance may be those

          7  suspected of unorthodoxy in their political beliefs.

          8  In addition" --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I just want

         10  to keep you to the question.

         11                 MR. OFER:  No, this is the answer,

         12  this is why --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  You are

         14  quoting some old case which I have no idea if it was

         15  over --

         16                 MR. OFER:  It is the law.  It is the

         17  United States Supreme Court.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  If it is the

         19  law, as you say it is, then this Act is

         20  unconstitutional, right off the base.

         21                 MR. OFER:  Right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Right, so,

         23  but it has not been held unconstitutional by many,

         24  many judges.  Small portions have been,, so, I don't

         25  know why you are sitting here explaining to me what
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          2  the law is, when it's already been held

          3  constitutional.

          4                 MR. OFER:  No, it has not been held

          5  constitutional.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  So, what is

          7  the purpose?

          8                 MR. OFER:  The way that our system of

          9  government works is that the Congress passes a law,

         10  and Congress could pass a law  that is

         11  unconstitutional, and not until the Judiciary makes

         12  a decision, is it officially unconstitutional.  The

         13  ACLU, we filed a lawsuit during the summer

         14  challenging Section 215 of the PATRIOT Act, it was

         15  the Section that we are discussing right now, and it

         16  is currently before a federal judge, and I have no

         17  doubt that this federal judge would declare it

         18  unconstitutional based on Fourth Amendment

         19  violations.

         20                 The government has already labeled,

         21  as terrorists, the Vieques protesters.  Those people

         22  engaged in civil disobedience, on the Island of

         23  Vieques, because of the government's use of that

         24  island as a military exercise facility.  This is how

         25  the government is defining terrorism, and under the
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          2  PATRIOT Act --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I am sorry,

          4  but you had, you had your chance to speak.  I want

          5  to discuss with you the -- we had a discussion about

          6  criminal suspicion and library records, we are

          7  talking about Vieques now.  Let's stick to the

          8  library records and criminal suspicion, you can go

          9  off on that when someone else speaks, but I would

         10  like an answer to my question.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I am going to

         12  ask that you speak directly to the question because

         13  I want to move on to some other panelists who have

         14  indicated that they have a need to leave, as well.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  The law, let

         16  me just jump in because I think you answered it, you

         17  said that you stuck to what you believe, and you

         18  believe that criminal suspicion is necessary. I said

         19  that there is no crime when you are investigating

         20  terrorists on many activities.

         21                 MR. OFER:  Right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Now the

         23  other portion of the Fourth Amendment that needs to

         24  be discussed is you have no Fourth Amendment rights

         25  in any record that you have disclosed to a third
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          2  party, such as a library record, which you have

          3  disclosed to the librarian.  So, the Fourth

          4  Amendment does not even come into play when you

          5  discuss library records.

          6                 MR. OFER:  That is not true, the

          7  Fourth Amendment does come into play.  The

          8  protections might be weaker, but you still have to

          9  prove criminal suspicion.  And the reason it is

         10  relevant to talk about the Vieques protestors is

         11  because you said, and we agree, under the PATRIOT

         12  Act, you do not have to prove criminal suspicion if

         13  you are investigating terrorism, correct?  The

         14  government labels the Vieques protestors as

         15  terrorists; in other words, if the government is

         16  investigating non-violent, civil disobedience, they

         17  do not have to prove criminal suspicion in order to

         18  obtain their records.  That is why it is relevant.

         19  It is extremely relevant.  It is the key of all of

         20  this.

         21                 So, in other words, the government

         22  cannot consider anti-war protestors as terrorists,

         23  anti-choice protestors, pro-life protestors, as

         24  terrorists.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  What they
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          2  consider is one thing, they still have to get a

          3  Court ordered subpoena, what the government

          4  considers them is one thing, what the Court

          5  considers them is another thing.  There is judicial

          6  oversight over every part of this process.

          7                 MR. OFER:  There is not regular

          8  judicial oversight, it is not a normal court, it is

          9  the Foreign Intelligence Surveillance Court, that

         10  meets in secret, with one party to all proceedings,

         11  and the normal protections of the Constitution do

         12  not apply.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I

         14  understand, I completely understand that, it is the

         15  court --

         16                 MR. OFER:  The Foreign Intelligence

         17  court was created for foreign intelligence programs.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  There is a

         19  reason it is a secret because it deals with

         20  terrorism activities, and it is a courtroom, and it

         21  is a different courtroom, and you are absolutely

         22  right.

         23                 Okay, I didn't want to argue with

         24  you, I know there are other Council members here,

         25  there are many other things I need to discuss, but
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          2  we will maybe have a meeting and discuss them.

          3                 MR OFER:  Okay.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  So, thank

          5  you for your testimony.

          6                 MR. OFER:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRMAN PERKINS:  Let me acknowledge

          8  the presence of Council Member Eva Moskowitz, the

          9  Chairwoman of our Education Committee.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         11  Moskowitz, how do you vote?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  I vote

         13  aye.  Thank you very much.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK:  The vote now stands

         15  at seven in the affirmative, one in the negative, no

         16  abstentions.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Again, we will

         18  leave the vote open because I believe Council Member

         19  Addabbo may be on his way.

         20                 Thank you very much to this panel.

         21  We appreciate your presence once again and the

         22  exchange that you have had between yourselves and

         23  the members of this Committee, and we also

         24  appreciate your continued good work as New York City

         25  Civil Liberties Union.
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          2                 Our next panel will include a

          3  representative of the relatives of 9/11 victims,

          4  Miss Adele Welty, she is a September 11th Families

          5  for Peaceful Tomorrows, from Flushing, New York.

          6  Please join us at the dais.

          7                 COUNSEL TOLLIN:  Good morning.  Could

          8  you please raise your right hand.

          9                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm the

         10  testimony you are about to give is the truth, the

         11  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         12                 MS. WELTY:  I do.

         13                 COUNSEL TOLLIN:  Thank you.  Could

         14  you please state your name.

         15                 MS. WELTY:  Okay, Adele Welty.  I am

         16  the mother of Firefighter Timothy Welty, FDNY, Squad

         17  288, lost in the line of duty on September 11th.  I

         18  am also a member of Peaceful Tomorrows, a group of

         19  9/11 families who have channeled our grief into

         20  action for peace and justice.

         21                 Members of Peaceful Tomorrows began

         22  protesting this country's rush to war in October of

         23  2001, as the Administration geared up to bomb

         24  Afghanistan, before those of us outside the

         25  government know who was responsible for the attacks.
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          2  Peaceful Tomorrows members then traveled to

          3  Afghanistan to express commonality and empathy with

          4  the families of civilian victims of the bombings.

          5                 Subsequently, members also traveled

          6  to Iraq, prior to the current onset of war to reach

          7  out to civilians and express our opposition to the

          8  spread of violence.

          9                 On March 17th of this year, three

         10  members of Peaceful Tomorrows, along with 51 other

         11  non-violent protestors, were arrested in Washington,

         12  D.C., in front of the Capitol Building, while

         13  peacefully demonstrating against the war and for

         14  attempting to tell our Congressional representatives

         15  we did not agree with their capitulation to the

         16  Administration on the Iraq war.  We were detained

         17  for seven hours, without access to a telephone,

         18  denied the right to contact an attorney, and with no

         19  food or water.

         20                 Peaceful Tomorrows thanks those who

         21  have expressed their compassion for the loss of our

         22  family members in the murderous attack that shook

         23  the United States and the world.  But their common

         24  sense words of comfort stand in sharp contrast to

         25  our government's response to those attacks.
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          2                 We ask you to reflect on the

          3  dangerous course of these current policies under

          4  Homeland Security and the PATRIOT Act, and look for

          5  a new approach to 9/11 that will bring true security

          6  and justice to all the people of this land.

          7                 I asked to come here today to support

          8  Resolution 909, against both the U.S. PATRIOT Act

          9  and certain provisions of the Homeland Security Act.

         10    Similar resolutions have been passed by, I

         11  believe, more than 200 jurisdictions across this

         12  country. The PATRIOT Act poses a serious threat to

         13  the exercise of our Constitutional rights, most

         14  particularly our rights to Due Process of Law.

         15                 Appealing to the fear of terrorism,

         16  the Administration has gathered support among many

         17  Americans and in the Congress, for sweeping

         18  executive powers of detention and surveillance

         19  including the investigation of lawful First

         20  Amendment activity, if that activity can be tied to

         21  intelligence purposes. It undermines our Fourth

         22  Amendment right to privacy and expands the ability

         23  of the government to use wiretaps and computer

         24  surveillance, and to look at confidential medical,

         25  financial, business and educational records.  I know
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          2  that some of the excesses of, that Udi had described

          3  in the detention of people who have not been charged

          4  with a crime are, have these infringements of our

          5  Bill of Rights, who are not committed under the

          6  PATRIOT Act, as Mr. Vallone has pointed out, and I

          7  feel that is all the more reason not to sanction

          8  such efforts by this Justice Department even further

          9  with the PATRIOT Act.  Although some sections of the

         10  Act were written before 9/11, the Congress passed

         11  the PATRIOT Act just after the attacks, without

         12  debate over its' consequences, during a time of

         13  extreme anxiety over our safety and deep emotional

         14  stress over our losses.  The people of this country

         15  were reeling in shock when the legislation was

         16  rammed through the Congress so fast, that many of

         17  our esteemed representatives voted for it, by their

         18  own admission, without reading it, much less

         19  debating it.

         20                 It is not only immigrants who have

         21  been denied their rights as residents of this

         22  country, American citizens are, as we speak, being

         23  monitored and detained, denied the right to privacy,

         24  and unwarranted search and seizure, denied the right

         25  to assemble, and request redress from the
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          2  government.

          3                 This Administration has used the

          4  tragedy of 9/11, and the deaths of our family

          5  members, to push its agenda of regime change abroad,

          6  repression here at home.  I see my sons' death and

          7  the deaths of every precious soul that died that

          8  day, used again and again, to scare this country

          9  into war, to undermine environmental protections and

         10  to concentrate power in the hands of the executive

         11  branch in ways that abrogate far too many of our

         12  liberty interests.

         13                 In recent statements, the Attorney

         14  General has said that those who raise the specter of

         15  loss of liberty are aiding terrorists.  And, under

         16  the PATRIOT Act, he would have the discretion to

         17  decide who amongst us will be labeled a terrorist,

         18  including those of us who are exercising our First

         19  Amendment right to speak out, assemble and protest

         20  government actions we believe are ill advised.

         21  Those so designated have no Fourth Amendment rights

         22  to protection from search and seizure.  Contrary to

         23  the Sixth Amendment, we may be arrested and held

         24  without judicial oversight, without benefit of

         25  counsel, without a hearing before an impartial judge
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          2  and jury, without even knowing what charges are

          3  being leveled against us, and without the

          4  opportunity to present evidence or witnesses on our

          5  behalf.  This is contrary to everything our country

          6  stands for, contrary to our way of life that

          7  terrorists are trying to destroy.

          8                      Next month, I will be traveling

          9  to Afghanistan to meet with other individuals who

         10  are pursuing peaceful means to resolve our

         11  conflicts, and reach across the chasm of hate to

         12  touch people who have lost loved ones in the

         13  bombing.  Under the PATRIOT Act, this might be

         14  viewed as giving aid to terrorists, at least using

         15  the logic employed by this Justice Department.  But,

         16  my son died trying to save the victims of that

         17  horrible attack at the World Trade Center, and I

         18  want his legacy to be at least one small building

         19  block in the bridge to preserving our freedom and

         20  forging peace.

         21                 Last Thursday, Supreme Court Justice

         22  Ruth Bader Ginsburg said that people concerned about

         23  losing freedom to government anti-terrorism efforts

         24  should speak out.  One important issue, like the

         25  balance between liberty and security, if the public
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          2  does not care, then the security side is going to

          3  overweigh the other, she said.  And, so, I am

          4  speaking out, but I believe that the PATRIOT Act is

          5  an overreaching attempt to rectify the intelligence

          6  failures prior to 9/11.  There is no doubt we must

          7  find terrorists, and try them in a court of law, but

          8  we must continue to be a nation that abides by the

          9  rule of law, so carefully crafted in our

         10  Constitution, refined by the amendments, and

         11  repeatedly clarified by case law to protect our

         12  freedom, and the freedom that tens of thousands of

         13  American soldiers have died to maintain, a way of

         14  life that distinguishes us from those countries

         15  whose regimes we wish to change.

         16                 The intelligence and law enforcement

         17  communities are in a difficult place.  If they are

         18  overzealous in pursing their duties, we accuse them

         19  of abuse of power.  If we do not stop terrorists, if

         20  they do not stop terrorists, we accuse them of

         21  dereliction in their duties.  So they must maintain

         22  a delicate balance, protecting us from attack while

         23  maintaining and upholding our civil liberties.

         24                 I do not suggest that this is an easy

         25  task, but it is the one at hand, and it is the very
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          2  job of government.  I urge the City Council to pass

          3  this resolution and stop our civil liberties from

          4  being eroded before it is too late, before our basic

          5  freedom is so compromised that we will be hard

          6  pressed to win it back.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

          8  much.  Again, let me on behalf of the Committee and

          9  the Council extend our condolences to you and those

         10  who have lost loved ones on September 11th, and to

         11  commend you for turning what might have been a

         12  moment of despair, into a moment of hope, and a

         13  moment of activism that speaks to what this nation

         14  is truly about, particularly in terms of what

         15  patriotism really is, and we very much appreciate

         16  your taking the time to come and share with us this

         17  morning your position in support of the resolution,

         18  and the kind of work that you and your organization

         19  are doing.  So, thank you very much.

         20                 MS. WELTY:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Any questions?

         22  Thank you very much.

         23                 Next we will have a panel, our final

         24  panel, consisting of civil rights activists,

         25  immigrants rights groups, and ordinary New Yorkers
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          2  involved in grass roots movement.

          3                 In that regard, we are asking to come

          4  forward Partha Banerjee, Executive Director of the

          5  New Immigrant Community Empowerment, sometime also

          6  known as NICE.  We are asking to come forward Mo

          7  Razvi, Executive Director of Council of Pakistan

          8  Organizations, and Nancy Young, a volunteer with the

          9  New York City Bill of Rights Defense Campaign.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Mr. Chair,

         11  let me just say, I noticed that this panel is

         12  entitled "ordinary New Yorkers", and I am just

         13  amazed that you were not able to find any ordinary

         14  New Yorkers who could come down here and testify in

         15  favor of, or against this resolution, I guess I am

         16  the only one.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Well, you are

         18  an exceptionally ordinary New Yorker, and we

         19  appreciate the fact that you have bothered to come

         20  down to share you point of view, though we did reach

         21  out to ordinary New Yorkers, so to speak, that this

         22  was publicized in the normal ways, and also, of

         23  course, if you had ordinary New Yorkers that you

         24  felt needed to be a part of this, you, as well as

         25  all the other Committee members, were entitled to
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          2  invite them, and needless to say, we would have

          3  welcomed them.  Thank you.

          4                 COUNSEL TOLLIN:  Could you each raise

          5  your right hand.   Do you solemnly swear or affirm

          6  the testimony you are about to give is the truth,

          7  the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          8                 MR. RAZVI:  I do.

          9                 MS. YOUNG:  I do.

         10                 MR. BANERJEE:  I do.

         11                 COUNSEL TOLLIN:  Thank you.  Could

         12  you, before giving your testimony, give your name

         13  and your organization.

         14                 MR. BANERJEE:  My name is Partha

         15  Banergee.  I am the Community Organizer at New

         16  Immigrant Community Empowerment, or NICE, and thank

         17  you for the opportunity to testify.

         18                 COUNSEL TOLLIN:  So you know, you

         19  each are on a three-minute clock, so please keep

         20  your testimony within three minutes.

         21                 MR. BANERJEE:  Thank you.  Good

         22  morning Chairman Perkins, and members of the

         23  Governmental Operations Committee.

         24                 I will be brief and go over my

         25  testimony real quick, but you will have the whole

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  thing to peruse whenever you have a chance.

          3                 September 11, 2001 cannot and must

          4  not be forgotten, on that sad and tragic day the

          5  United States and New York City, in particular,

          6  suffered the worst terrorist attacks in our nation's

          7  and City's history.  We send our prayers to the

          8  families of the victims, and we send out heartfelt

          9  gratitude to everyone who was helping our nation,

         10  our cities, our citizens, and our residents to heal.

         11                 Although many acts of heroism have

         12  helped our nation to move forward, sadly, the U.S.

         13  PATRIOT Act, passed in Congress immediately after

         14  9/11 and that too, with nearly no public awareness

         15  or input, is not one of those heroic acts.  In a

         16  depraved and ironic manner, the United States

         17  government set about trampling on the very freedoms,

         18  rights, and values that the country cherishes and

         19  seeks to defend.

         20                 While the rights and freedoms of

         21  every United States citizen and resident has been

         22  severely injured, my testimony today focuses on the

         23  impact of post- 9/11 laws and policies on new

         24  immigrants including Muslims, Sikhs, Arabs and South

         25  Asians who are citizens of the greatest, most

                                                            54

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  diverse, and one of the most tolerant cities in the

          3  world, New York City.

          4                 Existing federal laws and government

          5  policies have created a climate ripe for hate crimes

          6  in New York City, and in the rest of the country.

          7  In the post- 9/11 scenario, when the federal

          8  government enacts rules that tell us that certain

          9  people get pulled off planes for falsely perceived

         10  terrorism, it sends a blatant and strong message to

         11  the American people that this is the group to

         12  distrust, or to worry about.

         13                 By requiring male immigrants of over

         14  16 years of age from Middle Eastern, South Asian,

         15  and other Muslim countries to specially register

         16  with the Department of Homeland Security, the

         17  government is signaling that all men and boys from

         18  those countries are dangerous and potential

         19  terrorists.  The massive government round- up, and

         20  detention, of immigrants and Americans alike, with

         21  no terrorism charges whatsoever brought onto them,

         22  send a government sponsored signal that these

         23  residents are harmful and destructive.

         24                 Then, it is no surprise that in the

         25  aftermath of September 11, 2001, the New York Police
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          2  Department has reported that hate crimes against

          3  Muslims, South Asians, Sikhs, and Arabs have

          4  dramatically increased and persists to remain at a

          5  higher rate than pre- 9/11 days although the NYPD

          6  crime statistics have dropped generally.  Hate

          7  crimes on other immigrants have risen too. Recently,

          8  a Russian immigrant worker has been beaten to death

          9  in Bushwick, Brooklyn.

         10                 NICE has been vigorously engaged in

         11  fighting hate crimes since its inception in 1999,

         12  and has witnessed firsthand the and the recent spate

         13  in hate crimes against people perceived to be Arabs,

         14  South Asians or Muslims.  The case of the recent

         15  attack on Mr. Singh, and his family is illustrative

         16  of what has been happening, with some amount of

         17  frequency, in various forms in our streets, in our

         18  schools, and in places of employment.

         19                 I also have a stories pertaining to

         20  Mrs. T., who is a United States legal permanent

         21  resident from Columbia, who lives in Brooklyn, whose

         22  husband has been deported upon no terrorism charges

         23  whatsoever brought onto him.

         24                 Then we also have a story of Mrs. R.,

         25  who came to the U.S. From Pakistan, 17 years ago to
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          2  flee a very abusive husband, and her asylum has been

          3  rejected, and she is now in detention center in New

          4  York City, and she has 2 children.

          5                 Then we also have a story of Mr. H.,

          6  who came to the United States in 1997, and had

          7  applied for a valid, legally done permanent resident

          8  status but while his petition was pending, he had to

          9  go for this scary, special registration.  He decided

         10  to comply with the law but the judge came him a

         11  deportation order, and he is supposed to leave in

         12  two weeks of time.

         13                 All these people have lost their, so

         14  called, American dreams and they are now going

         15  through a very, very depressing and traumatizing

         16  period of time in their lives.

         17                 In fundamental ways, the tragedies of

         18  9/11, which could have brought us wisdom,

         19  introspection, and reflection and helped chart a

         20  more sane future, have been taken away from us,

         21  devoured by the extremely scary, all- enveloping

         22  U.S.A. PATRIOT Act and related repressive laws,

         23  policies, and measures.  President Bush attempts to

         24  perpetually use the war on terrorism to justify its

         25  most destructive, and inhumane policies.  The quote,
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          2   "Either you are with us, or you are with them",

          3  rhetoric does not work in a democratic society.

          4  Some parts of U.S.A.P.A. have recently been called

          5  unconstitutional by Federal District Judge Audrey

          6  Collins.

          7                 New Immigrant Community Empowerment,

          8  or NICE, strongly supports New York City Council

          9  Resolution 909, in order to restore a great measure

         10  of freedom, equity, and balance in our country.

         11  There are now close to 200 communities nationwide

         12  that have passed resolutions against destruction of

         13  American civil liberties and human rights.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Please sum up.

         15  Please sum up.

         16                 MR. BANERGEE:  New York City must not

         17  lag behind, and we urge all the members of the

         18  Council to cast their votes in support of Resolution

         19  909.  Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         21  much.  Yes, next?

         22                 MR. RAZVI:  Yes, my name is Mohammad

         23  Razvi, I am the Executive Director of Council of

         24  Pakistan Organization.

         25                 Good morning everyone.  I am here to
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          2  inform you of the plights of a community, which is

          3  unknown to most of us, and has currently been living

          4  in cloud of fear, after the events of 9/11.

          5                 COUNSEL TOLLIN:  Mr. Razvi, is the

          6  light off on your microphone?

          7                 MR. RAZVI: One.

          8                 COUNSEL TOLLIN:  Okay, you can come a

          9  little closer to it.  Thank you.

         10                 MR. RAZVI:  After the tragic events

         11  of 9/11, what was happening in our community,

         12  particularly, was the round- ups, the raids.  I am

         13  actually a businessman, and while I was waiting in

         14  my store, I could not believe it, all these mothers,

         15  all these fathers, they came looking for their

         16  children.  They could not find them.  Over 500

         17  people were taken in.  I could not believe it, that

         18  I could not answer their questions, where they were.

         19    They asked me, they asked me, you can talk to the

         20  people, you can talk to the police department. You

         21  can talk to the F.B.I. Department, find out where

         22  they are, we cannot find them.  This is what has

         23  been happening after the PATRIOT Act, and all these

         24  people, all these people they do not have the voice,

         25  I cannot believe that I am loosing my voice, they do
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          2  not have the voice to speak out of their rights.

          3                 I opened up this organization called

          4  COPO, and that is where I have seen that it is not

          5  just, it is not just what was happening was the

          6  community itself was down falling, we took a survey,

          7  I have a survey in front of you, I hope you have it.

          8    It shows the community itself, that community was

          9  just a dead zone before the immigrants came there.

         10  It used to be, it used to be, it's antique stores,

         11  and that is all it was, it was just like a dead

         12  spot.  All this immigrant communities that came

         13  there, all of a sudden, everything changed.  The

         14  property value, everything just went up.

         15                 After 9/11, the community dropped,

         16  like all the other communities.  But, after special

         17  registration, which was from the PATRIOT Act, it

         18  really killed the community.  It dropped from 25

         19  percent to 80 percent.  Business stores were closed,

         20  out of 130 stores, 30 stores just shut down.  Out of

         21  250,000 South Asians that were living there, 20,000

         22  just left, they were seeking asylum in Canada, and

         23  they were granted.  We have cases where these

         24  individuals, their families, half the family is

         25  here, half the family is in Canada, and they were
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          2  granted asylum, away from the United States, the

          3  Land of the Free.

          4                 I request you to support this

          5  Resolution 909, so at least, we can give some hope

          6  to the people that are here, that are still left

          7  here, of the 200,000 South Asians.

          8                 On behalf of the community, it makes

          9  a worthwhile to live and strive for towards the

         10  successful accomplishment of the great American

         11  dream.  At this time, I call upon you to all

         12  remember the words of Dr. King, "The ultimate

         13  measures of a man is not where he stands in the

         14  moments of comfort and convenience, but where he

         15  stands at the time of challenge and controversy."

         16  Please make the right decision and pass this.  Thank

         17  you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you.

         19  Next.

         20                 MS. YOUNG:  My name is Nancy E.

         21  Young, and Mr. Vallone, I am an ordinary American.

         22  My father is a veteran of World War II, he worked

         23  for the federal government, I worked with the

         24  federal government.  He was educated by federal

         25  government funding, as was I.  I would like to talk
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          2  to you about your Lenin quote after the hearing, in

          3  private.  I found it quite offensive, although I

          4  appreciate that you do have freedom of expression,

          5  and I am very happy for the words over your heads,

          6  that this is a government of the people, by the

          7  people, and for the people.

          8                 With that, I am pleased to be here

          9  today to represent other concerned Americans who

         10  have been living as typical New Yorkers.  We are

         11  employees in the corporate environment, teachers in

         12  public and private schools, workers in the non-

         13  profit sector, and individuals enjoying life as

         14  retirees.  We are African American, Arab-American,

         15  Asian- American, Hispanic and Caucasian. Some of us

         16  are immigrants, children of immigrants, and some of

         17  us have to reach far back for immigrant or

         18  Native-American roots.  We are volunteers in

         19  churches synagogues, mosques, community groups,

         20  community gardens, parks, and the city's schools.

         21  And, now, volunteering in this cause.

         22                 I am here as one of many voices, to

         23  express alarm that our American values are in

         24  danger.  As a person born in the 60's, I have sensed

         25  in my life time that things have gotten better, not
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          2  quickly, not easily, not always in a straightforward

          3  manner, but the lives of Americans have progressed

          4  towards our traditional and long-held values,

          5  wrapped in modern dreams such as that espoused by

          6  Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.

          7                 Our values include freedom, equality,

          8  privacy, independence, and individualism.  Some

          9  members of this society take them for granted, they

         10  are not fully in the reach of others, but they are a

         11  shared vision of democracy.

         12                 Our values are in danger, threatened

         13  by government actions primarily at the federal

         14  level, but also at state and local levels.  This

         15  dismantling of values has started to unweave the

         16  long- standing threads of our Bill of Rights, a

         17  document that has served us well for 212 years in

         18  times of peace, in times of crisis. We should not

         19  underestimate the ability of this living document to

         20  guide us in times post- 9/11.

         21                 For some, the damage to the Bill of

         22  Rights to limit and weaken freedom of expression,

         23  equal treatment, privacy, independence, and

         24  individualism is still theoretical, and for others

         25  it is now and real and devastating.  Democracy does
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          2  not live solely in the White House, it lives in

          3  Brooklyn, the Bronx, Queens, Staten Island, and

          4  Manhattan.  Judge Andrew Napolitano stated, "In a

          5  democracy, personal liberties are rarely diminished

          6  overnight. Rather, they are lost gradually, by acts

          7  of well- meaning people, with good intentions, amid

          8  public approval.  But the subtle loss of freedom is

          9  never recognized until the crisis is over and we

         10  look back in horror.  And, then it is too late."

         11                 We in the campaign do not believe it

         12  is too late yet.  We are inspired that ordinary

         13  Americans, just like us, have worked in 239 cities,

         14  and 3 states to create civil liberties, and civil

         15  right safe zones for over 34 million people, and

         16  that is what we intend to do in New York.

         17                 The Bill of Rights resolution does

         18  not call for the repeal of the U.S.A. PATRIOT Act.

         19  It does not dismantle the NYPD. It does not prevent

         20  them from doing their job- to uphold the quality of

         21  life of New Yorkers.  It does not minimize the

         22  importance of national security, but upholds the

         23  integrity of national security in the full sense of

         24  the term.

         25                 It calls upon the New York City
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          2  government to affirm and uphold the civil rights and

          3  liberties of its citizens.  It provides a measured

          4  and reasonable response to address certain areas of

          5  excess and zealousness by government actions.  The

          6  U.S. Supreme Court stated, "Implicit in the term

          7   'national defense' is the notion of defending

          8  values and ideas which set this Nation apart."

          9                 New Yorkers, and the rest of the

         10  country are looking to you, members of this

         11  governing body, to provide the most fundamental

         12  defense this country needs, by supporting our Bill

         13  of Rights.  We are holding you accountable to uphold

         14  our civil rights and civil liberties.  Thank you

         15  all.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         17  much.  Thank you very much for your testimony, for

         18  your work in, on behalf of the people of the City of

         19  New York, your work in defense of Civil Rights and

         20  Civil Liberties, and we hope that you will continue

         21  with such good work, and look forward to seeing you

         22  once again at the City Council.  Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 Can we get a review of the vote?  Did

         25  he leave? Okay, so we will keep it open for a little
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          2  while longer.

          3                 This was our last, our last series of

          4  witnesses, the vote stands as of now, 7 in favor of

          5  the resolution, 1 against, and one still on its way,

          6  one way or the other.

          7                 But, let me say, clearly the

          8  resolution has passed with the same majority that

          9  passed it last session.  We have reason, therefore,

         10  to be confident that the Body on Wednesday will

         11  receive it, and pass it overwhelmingly.  We have no

         12  indications to the contrary.

         13                 Let me say, as we again are reminded

         14  that this is Black History Month, it is a time when

         15  we reflect on those critical moments in our history,

         16  and this is one of those critical moments in our

         17  history, similar to the Civil War, similar to the

         18  McCarthy era, similar to the days of the Civil

         19  Rights Movement when COINTELPRO activities were used

         20  to undermine civil rights and civil liberties.  We

         21  are again at a point with the PATRIOT Act, in which

         22  we are seeing this pattern once again.  It is a

         23  pattern that reminds us that sometimes, as my

         24  colleague Madeline Provenzano pointed out, that the

         25  enemy is sometimes within.  That the problems that
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          2  we have that are potentially undermining our

          3  democracy are problems that sometimes come from

          4  within.  And, so, the wonderful thing about this

          5  democracy is that you can dissent and be patriotic.

          6  That you can challenge the government.  That you can

          7  challenge bad legislation and still be patriotic,

          8  and in fact, be right, and in fact, make a change.

          9                 So, with that in mind, I want to

         10  thank my colleagues for their participation, in what

         11  I believe was a very, very significant hearing, on a

         12  very, very significant matter that affects, once

         13  again, all New Yorkers, as well as the rest of the

         14  country.

         15                 We thank you very much.  This hearing

         16  is adjourned.

         17                 (Hearing adjourned 11:45 a.m.)
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